
LE SUEUR COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
MEETING AGENDA
October 17, 2017

1. 9:00 a.m. Agenda and Consent Agenda
a. RE: October 3, 2017 Minutes and Summary Minutes
b. RE: Liquor License - Hobber's

2. 9:05 a.m. Claims (5 min)

3. 9:10 a.m. Human Services (35 min)

4. 9:45 a.m. Ryan Engelstad, Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP (30 min)
a. RE: 12/31/16 Audit Presentation

5. 10:15 a.m. Human Resources (5 min)

6. 10:20 a.m. Pam Simonette, Auditor-Treasurer (10 min)
a. RE: Snowmobile Grant Agreement 2018
b. RE: David Woestehoff Farm Lease for Ney Property

7. 10:30 a.m. H2Over Viewers (15 min)
a. RE: Introduction

8. 10:45 a.m. Vicki Walechka, Victim Witness (5 min)
a. RE: Grant Agreement

9. 10:50 a.m. Darrell Pettis, County Administrator 
a. RE: MCIT Delegate and Alternate

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/17/2017 Page 1 / 71



b. RE: MCIT JPA
c. RE: German Jefferson Petition
d. RE: West Jefferson
e. RE: Justice Center

10. 11:00 a.m. PUBLIC HEARING Mike Schultz, SWCD, Kathy Brockway, Env. 
Services (45 minutes)

a. RE: Public Hearing-Buffer Ordinance

11. Commissioner Committee Reports

12. Future Meetings List

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/17/2017 Page 2 / 71



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, October 17, 2017

Board Meeting

Item 1

9:00 a.m. Agenda and Consent Agenda

RE: October 3, 2017 Minutes and Summary Minutes

RE: Liquor License - Hobber's

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/17/2017 Page 3 / 71



Minutes of Le Sueur County Board of Commissioners Meeting
October 3, 2017

The Le Sueur County Board of Commissioners met in regular session on Tuesday, October 3, 
2017 at 9:00 a.m. in the Courthouse at Le Center, Minnesota.  Those members present were: 
Steve Rohlfing, Lance Wetzel, Dave Gliszinski and John King. Brent Christian and Darrell Pettis 
were also present. Joe Connolly was excused. 

On motion by King, seconded by Wetzel and unanimously approved, the Board approved the 
agenda for the business of the day.

On motion by Gliszinski, seconded by King and unanimously approved, the Board approved the 
consent agenda:

● Approved the September 26, 2017 County Board Minutes and Summary Minutes
● Approved liquor licenses for Le Sueur Country Club, Lakeside Supper Club, 
Boondocks of Cleveland, Lakefront Bar and Grill and Woods Grill and Bar.
●Approved September 2017 Transfers:

#1668 Transfer 3,670.00 from Agency to Revenue (September Landshark)
#1669 Transfer 24,740.12 from Human Services to Revenue (3rd Qtr Rent)

On motion by Gliszinski, seconded by King and unanimously approved, the Board approved the 
Human Services claims:

Financial:             $ 24,931.75
Soc Services:      $ 67,388.02

Kari Sowieja, Human Services appeared before the Board with one item for approval.

On motion by King, seconded by Wetzel and unanimously approved, the Board approved and 
authorized the Board Chair to sign a SHIP Mini Grant.

Nik Kadel, Ditch Inspector appeared before the Board with an update on County ditches.

Two quotes were received for a repair project on County Ditch 45.

Zimmerman Tiling & Excavating $22,910
Selly Excavating $24,840

On motion by King, seconded by Wetzel and unanimously approved, the Board approved the 
quote from Zimmerman in the amount of $22,910 for a repair on County Ditch 45.

Cindy Westerhouse, Human Resources appeared before the Board with several items for 
approval.

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/17/2017 Page 4 / 71



On motion by King, seconded by Gliszinski and unanimously approved, the Board approved to 
grant regular status to Sheila Reem, full time Septic Inspector in Environmental, Planning and 
Zoning, effective October 4, 2017.  Sheila has completed the six-month probationary period.  

On motion by Wetzel, seconded by Gliszinski and unanimously approved, the Board approved to 
hire Kelly Mittman as a part time Corrections Officer/Dispatcher in the Sheriff’s Office, Grade 6, 
Step 1 at $17.94 per hour, effective October 6, 2017.  

On motion by Gliszinski, seconded by King and unanimously approved, the Board approved to 
renew and sign the Le Sueur County Telecommute Agreement with Kari Peters, full time 
Agency Social Work, in Human Services, effective September 17, 2017 to September 17, 2018.  

On motion by King, seconded by Wetzel and unanimously approved, the Board approved to 
accept the resignation request from Megan Gaudette-Coryell, full time Assistant County 
Attorney in the County Attorney’s office, effective October 16, 2017.  Megan has been 
employed with Le Sueur County since January 2013.

On motion by King, seconded by Gliszinski and unanimously approved, the Board approved to 
post and advertise for a full time Assistant County Attorney in the County Attorney’s office, 
Grade 12, Step 1 at $25.44 per hour.

On motion by Wetzel, seconded by Gliszinski and unanimously approved, the Board approved 
the 2018 health insurance premiums and the employer contribution of $909.50 per month to all 
benefits eligible employees for the single coverage group health insurance plan.   

2017 monthly premium - $3250 - $722.00
 $5000 - $597.00

2018 monthly premium - $3250 - $727.00
            $5000 - $601.00

On motion by King, seconded by Gliszinski and unanimously approved, the Board approved the 
2018 health insurance premiums and the employer contribution of $1,400.00 per month to all 
benefits eligible employees for the family coverage group health insurance plan.  

2017 monthly premium - $3250/$6500  -      $2092.50
            $5000/$10,000 -   $1729.50

2018 monthly premium - $3250/$6500     -    $2106.50
            $5000/$10,000  -   $1741.00

On motion by Wetzel, seconded by King and unanimously approved, the Board approved to 
accept the resignation request from Darrell Pettis as County Engineer, effective October 3, 2017.

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/17/2017 Page 5 / 71



On motion by Gliszinski, seconded by King and unanimously approved, the Board approved to 
appoint Darrell Pettis, full time County Administrator/County Engineer, to full time County 
Administrator, in County Administration, effective October 3, 2017.  

On motion by Gliszinski, seconded by King and unanimously approved, the Board approved the 
County Administrator Employment Agreement between Le Sueur County and Darrell Pettis to 
serve as County Administrator, effective October 3, 2017.   

On motion by Wetzel, seconded by Gliszinski and unanimously approved, the Board approved to 
appoint David Tiegs, full time Assistant County Engineer in the Highway Department, to full 
time County Engineer in the Highway Department, effective October 3, 2017 through May 4, 
2021.  David has been employed with Le Sueur County since September 2007.

Jim Golgart, Veterans Services Director appeared before the Board with two items for approval.

On motion by King, seconded by Wetzel and unanimously approved, the Board approved and 
authorized the board Chair to sign the following Resolution:

RESOLUTION OF LE SUEUR COUNTY

BE IT RESOLVED by the LE SUEUR COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS that the 
County enter into the attached Grant Contract with the Minnesota Department of Veterans 
Affairs (MDVA) to conduct the following Program: County Veterans Service Office 
Operational Enhancement Grant Program.  The grant must be used to provide outreach to the 
county's Veterans; to assist in the reintegration of combat Veterans into society; to collaborate 
with other social service agencies, educational institutions, and other community organizations 
for the purposes of enhancing services offered to veterans; to reduce homelessness among 
veterans; and to enhance the operations of the county Veterans service office, as specified in 
Minnesota Laws 2017, Chapter 4, Article 1, Section 38, Subdivision 2.  This Grant should not be 
used to supplant or replace other funding.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the LE SUEUR COUNTY BOARD OF 
COMMISSIONERS that JAMES GOLGART the DIRECTOR OF VETERANS SERVICES, 
be authorized to execute the attached Grant Contract for the above-mentioned Program on behalf 
of the County.  

WHEREUPON the above resolution was adopted at a regular meeting of the County Board this 
3rd day of October 2017.

On motion by Gliszinski, seconded by Wetzel and unanimously approved, the Board approved a 
Local County/Community Integration Program Memorandum of Understanding between Le 
Sueur County and Project Got Your Back.

Ann Traxler, Emergency Management appeared before the Board with one item for approval. 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/17/2017 Page 6 / 71



On motion by Wetzel, seconded by King and unanimously approved, the Board approved an out 
of state travel request for Nancy Domonoske for training in New Mexico.

John Weber, a German Jefferson resident appeared before the Board and submitted a German 
Jefferson Subordinate District Withdrawal Ballot Question Petition. The petition will be 
reviewed by County staff.

Darrell Pettis, County Administrator appeared before the Board with several items for discussion 
and approval.

On motion by Gliszinski, seconded by King and unanimously approved, the Board approved and 
authorized the Board Chair and County Administrator to sign a Juvenile Work Crew Contract.

On motion by Wetzel, seconded by Gliszinski and unanimously approved, the Board approved to 
advertise for Justice Center Bid Package #1 to be opened on October 26th at 2:00 p.m. in the 
Environmental Services conference room located at 515 South Maple Ave., Le Center, MN

On motion by King, seconded by Gliszinski and unanimously approved, the Board convened a 
County Ditch 42 public hearing at 10:00 a.m.

There were no public comments.

On motion by Gliszinski, seconded by Wetzel and unanimously approved, the Board approved to 
close the public hearing.

On motion by King, seconded by Gliszinski and unanimously approved, the Board approved the 
following Order Initiating Redetermination of Benefits and Appointing Viewers:

WHEREAS, the Le Sueur County Board of Commissioners, Drainage Authority for Le Sueur 
County Ditch (LCD) 42, investigated whether conditions exist to warrant the redetermination of 
benefits of LCD 42; and

WHEREAS, upon investigation, the Board has determined the following:
1. LCD 42 was established in 1914 and subsequently improved in 1949. Benefits for LCD 

42 were determined concurrent with establishment in 1914 and improvement benefits 
were determined in 1949, prior to the initiation of modern, intensive farming and 
drainage practices within the County. 

2. The current benefits roll reflects the benefitted properties, benefitted areas, and benefit 
values as determined by viewers based on assumptions regarding the future use and 
drainage of said properties.

3. LCD 19 serves as the outlet for LCD 42, LCD 42 pays an outlet benefit to LCD 19 and a 
redetermination of benefits has been initiated for LCD 19. The resulting redetermination 
of benefits on LCD 19 will result in disjointed benefits rolls between LCD 19 and 42 and 
an inequitable distribution of outlet benefit to LCD 42 because of the disparity of time 
between with current benefits determination on LDC 42 and the current redetermination 
on LCD 19.

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/17/2017 Page 7 / 71



4. Since original establishment of LCD 42 and the most current determination of benefits 
and damages, land uses and drainage practices have changed to accelerate and increase 
the flow of water to the drainage system changing the nature and value of benefits 
accruing to lands from construction of LCD 42. The impacts of these changes have 
affected LCD 19 as the outlet and a new outlet benefit determination is necessary to 
reflect these changes.

5. Since the most current determination of benefits and damages, additional lands not 
previously determined to be benefitted have improved drainage to take advantage of LCD 
42 as an outlet for drainage.

6. Since the most recent determination of benefits and damages, land values have changed 
within the benefitted area of LCD 42.

7. The Drainage Authority noticed and held an informational hearing on the proposed 
redetermination of benefits for LCD 42 on October 3, 2017. The informational hearing 
was attended by landowners who confirmed the determinations of the Drainage 
Authority.

THEREFORE, the Le Sueur County Board of Commissioners, Drainage Authority for LCD 42, 
finds that the conditions required for the initiation of a redetermination of benefits exist, that the 
original benefits and damages do not reflect reasonable present day land values, and the 
benefitted areas have changed.

ORDER

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that a Redetermination of Benefits, pursuant to Minnesota Statutes 
103E.351 is ordered to be completed.

FURTHER, that Bill Anderson, Allen Kerber and Ron Ringquist are appointed as viewers to 
redetermine and report the benefits and damages for LCD 42; and

FURTHER, that the Auditor-Treasurer is directed to call a meeting of the viewers at which the 
viewers shall execute their oaths.

Commissioner Committee Reports:

Commissioner Gliszinski attended a County Officials meeting. 

Commissioner Wetzel attended an LCDS Board meeting. 

Commissioner Rohlfing attended LCDS and MRCI meetings.

On motion by Wetzel, seconded by Gliszinski and unanimously approved, the following claims 
were approved for payment:

Warrant # Vendor Name Amount

46991 Blane Andresen $    7,360.50

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/17/2017 Page 8 / 71



46995 Bolton & Menk Inc. $    7,314.70
46996 Braun Intertec Corp. $    6,460.00
46999 Contech Engineered Solutions LLC $    4,229.74
47010 Genesis $    2,732.30
47015 Green Tech Recycling $  21,364.00
47024 Information Systems Co. $    4,378.00
47034 Le Sueur Co Soil & Water Consv.Dist. $  29,698.46
47056 Regents of the University of Minnesota $    3,057.30
47066 S.M.C. Co. Inc. $  73,375.31
47076 Traxler Construction Inc. $  10,876.65
47084 Waseca Co Sheriff’s Dept. $    3,120.00
47086 Wenck Associates Inc. $    6,719.26

95   Claims paid less than $2,000.00: $  39,034.62  
13   Claims paid more than $2,000.00: $180,686.22
108 Total all claims paid: $219,720.84

On motion by King, seconded by Wetzel and unanimously approved, the Board adjourned until 
Tuesday, October 17, 2017 at 9:00 a.m.

ATTEST: _____________________________    _______________________________
          Le Sueur County Administrator   Le Sueur County Chairman

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/17/2017 Page 9 / 71



Summary Minutes of Le Sueur County Board of Commissioners Meeting, October 3, 2017
●This is only a summary publication per MN Statutes 375.12 and 331A.01 sub. 10.  The complete 
minutes are on file in the Le Sueur County Administrator’s Office at 88 S Park Ave. Le Center, MN and 
are available at www.co.le-sueur.mn.us.
●Approved the agenda. (King-Wetzel)
●Approved the consent agenda. (Gliszinski-King) August 22, 2017 County Board Minutes and Summary 
Minutes, liquor licenses and September 2017 Transfers: #1668 Transfer 3,670.00 from Agency to 
Revenue (September Landshark) and #1669 Transfer 24,740.12 from Human Services to Revenue (3rd Qtr 
Rent)
●Approved Human Services claims: Financial $ 24,931.75 and Soc Services $ 67,388.02 (Gliszinski-
King)
●Approved a SHIP Mini Grant. (King-Wetzel)
●Approved the quote from Zimmerman for a repair on County Ditch 45. (King-Wetzel)
●Approved regular status to Sheila Reem in Environmental, Planning and Zoning. (King-Gliszinski)  
●Approved to hire Kelly Mittman in the Sheriff’s Office. (Wetzel-Gliszinski)  
●Approved a Le Sueur County Telecommute Agreement with Kari Peters in Human Services. (Gliszinski-
King) 
●Approved to accept the resignation request from Megan Gaudette-Coryell in the County Attorney’s 
office. (King-Wetzel)
●Approved to post and advertise for a full time Assistant County Attorney. (King-Gliszinski)
●Approved the 2018 health insurance premiums and the employer contribution for the single coverage 
group health insurance plan. (Wetzel-Gliszinski)  
●Approved the 2018 health insurance premiums and the employer contribution for the family coverage 
group health insurance plan. (King-Gliszinski)
●Approved to accept the resignation request from Darrell Pettis as County Engineer. (Wetzel-King)
●Approved to appoint Darrell Pettis to full time County Administrator. (Gliszinski-King)  
●Approved the County Administrator Employment Agreement between Le Sueur County and Darrell 
Pettis. (Gliszinski-King)  
●Approved to appoint David Tiegs to full time County Engineer.(Wetzel-Gliszinski)
●Approved a grant contract between Le Sueur County and MDVA.(King-Wetzel)
●Approved a Local County/Community Integration Program Memorandum of Understanding between Le 
Sueur County and Project Got Your Back.(Gliszinski-Wetzel)
●Approved an out of state travel request for Nancy Domonoske.(Wetzel-King)
●John Weber submitted a German Jefferson Subordinate District Withdrawal Ballot Question Petition.
●Approved a Juvenile Work Crew Contract. (Gliszinski-King)
●Approved to advertise for Justice Center Bid Package #1 to be opened on October 26th at 2:00 p.m. in the 
Environmental Services conference room located at 515 South Maple Ave., Le Center, MN. (Wetzel-
Gliszinski)
●Convened a County Ditch 42 public hearing at 10:00 a.m. (King-Gliszinski)
●Approved to close the public hearing. (Gliszinski-Wetzel)
●Approved an Order Initiating Redetermination of Benefits and Appointing Viewers on County Ditch 42 
(King-Gliszinski)
●The following claims were approved for payment (Wetzel-Gliszinski)
Warrant # Vendor Name Amount
46991 Blane Andresen $    7,360.50
46995 Bolton & Menk Inc. $    7,314.70
46996 Braun Intertec Corp. $    6,460.00
46999 Contech Engineered Solutions LLC $    4,229.74
47010 Genesis $    2,732.30
47015 Green Tech Recycling $  21,364.00
47024 Information Systems Co. $    4,378.00

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/17/2017 Page 10 / 71

http://www.co.le-sueur.mn.us/


47034 Le Sueur Co Soil & Water Consv.Dist. $  29,698.46
47056 Regents of the University of Minnesota $    3,057.30
47066 S.M.C. Co. Inc. $  73,375.31
47076 Traxler Construction Inc. $  10,876.65
47084 Waseca Co Sheriff’s Dept. $    3,120.00
47086 Wenck Associates Inc. $    6,719.26
95   Claims paid less than $2,000.00:                                                  $  39,034.62  
13   Claims paid more than $2,000.00:                                                $180,686.22
108 Total all claims paid:                                                                     $219,720.84
●Adjourned until Tuesday, October 17, 2017 at 9:00 a.m. (King-Wetzel)
ATTEST:  Le Sueur County Administrator   Le Sueur County Chairman

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/17/2017 Page 11 / 71



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, October 17, 2017

Board Meeting

Item 2

9:05 a.m. Claims (5 min)

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/17/2017 Page 12 / 71



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, October 17, 2017

Board Meeting

Item 3

9:10 a.m. Human Services (35 min)

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/17/2017 Page 13 / 71



Human Services Board Agenda
October 17, 2017 @ 9:10 a.m.

100- INFORMATION/PRESENTATIONS:

 101 –  General Updates and Highlights
o 101.1 – Region 9 MSSA Award Recipients 

 Congratulations! Audrey Krenik, Agency Social Worker
 Congratulations! Mark Traxler, Psychologist I 

o 101.2 – Changes to the Child Care Program
 Deb Serich, Financial Assistance Supervisor
 Tricia Krueger, Case Aide

o 101.3 – Disability HUB MN   https://disabilityhubmn.org/
 “We can help you plan your best life, your way”
 Formerly the Disability Linkage Line

o 101.4 – SNAP Expedited and 30-Day Processing Certificate 
                      (April – June, 2017) Congratulations! Financial Assistance Unit

200- CHARTS/GRAPHS:

 210- Finance Graphs/Report;
 220- Income Maintenance/Child Support Graphs;                                 
 230- Family Services Graphs-
                    231- Social Services Team 

       232- Child Services Team
                   232.1- Out Of Home Placement Report
                   232.2- In-Home Family Therapy Report;
        233- Behavioral Health Team

300- BOARD APPROVAL ITEMS:

310 – Commissioner’s Warrants                                             

Department of Human Services
88 SOUTH PARK AVENUE          LE CENTER, MINNESOTA 56057-1646

507-357-2251          FAX 507-357-6122

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/17/2017 Page 14 / 71

https://disabilityhubmn.org/


Congratulations to Region 9 Award Recipients!

Outstanding Staff Achievement Award
Audrey Krenik often goes above and beyond in serving persons with serious and 
persistent mental illness through Le Sueur County Drug Court. She is creative in 
thinking about ways to serve people in rural areas who are living in poverty and 
without public transportation or access to resources. Ms. Krenik organizes "unit 
retreats" to facilitate team work and arranges for educational sessions for her 
team. She leads the way on setting up "SSIS Clean Up Days" to stay on top of 
paperwork tasks and assist her peers. Ms. Krenik also volunteered to pilot a new 
intake procedure and has developed an excellent process along with a high level 
of customer service. She has excellent working relationships with the multi-

disciplinary team of Drug Court and various community providers. Audrey Krenik was nominated by 
Susan Rynda.

Outstanding Staff Achievement Award
Mark Traxler is a Licensed Psychologist with Le Sueur County Human Services. He 
works with all parts of the county system to serve clients. He comes up with various 
groups to provide at our Clubhouse, and he will drop everything to assess an 
inmate at the jail to ensure their needs are assessed and addressed. He consults 
with community and family members to educate about mental health issues and 
resources. He participates in committees and teams improving their delivery of 
services to those served. Mr. Traxler's dedication to serving the "hardest to serve" 

for 23 years has been invaluable to Le Sueur County. His co-workers value his clinical judgment. 
Mark Traxler was nominated by Susan Rynda.

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/17/2017 Page 15 / 71



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/17/2017 Page 16 / 71



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, October 17, 2017

Board Meeting

Item 4

9:45 a.m. Ryan Engelstad, Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP (30 min)

RE: 12/31/16 Audit Presentation

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/17/2017 Page 17 / 71



Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP, is an independently  owned and managed 
member of Baker Tilly International. © 2010 Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP 

Le Sueur County 
 
 
 

Review of 2016 Audits 
 

This report is intended solely for the use of the County Board and Management. 

 
October 17, 2017 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/17/2017 Page 18 / 71



Agenda 

> Status of Engagements 
> Required Audit Communications 
> Other Management Letter Points 
> Review of Financial Statements Audit 
> Review of Federal Awards Compliance Audit 
> Questions 

 

 

2 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/17/2017 Page 19 / 71



Status of Engagements 

> Audit of Financial Statements 
– Draft reports finalized – issued 
– Publication of necessary info and submission of electronic report State Auditor’s office 

completed by Auditor/Treasurer’s office  
 

> Audit of Federal Award Programs 
– Draft reports finalized – issued 
– Electronic filing of Data Collection Form and Reporting Package to the Federal Audit 

Clearinghouse – completed 
 

> Audit of Compliance with State Statutes 
– Included with the compliance report noted above – no findings to report 

 

 

3 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/17/2017 Page 20 / 71



Required Audit Communications 

> Auditors’ responsibility 
– Findings similar to prior year, which 

are common for local governments of 
your size 

> Documents containing audited 
financial statements 

> No changes to planned scope and 
timing 

> Accounting policies 
– GASB 72 and 77 implemented 

> Accounting estimates 
– Net pension liability and deferrals 
– Allowance for uncollectible receivables 
– Depreciation expense 

> Financial statement disclosures are 
neutral, clear and consistent 

 
 

> No difficulties in performing the 
audit 

> Audit adjustments 
– Some were material and a 

complete list is attached 
> No disagreements with 

management 
> No consultations with other 

accountants 
> Management representations 
> Independence 
> Other findings or issues in normal 

course of audit 
> Other matters 
> Restriction on use 

 
 

 

 

4 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/17/2017 Page 21 / 71



Other Management Letter Points 

> Two-way communication regarding your audit 
– Planning mechanism for next year’s engagement 

> Other recommendations and informational points 
– Decentralized cash collections 

– GASB updates (Statements 74, 75 and 80, and other projects) 

– Procurement rules for expenditures under federal grants 

 

 

5 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/17/2017 Page 22 / 71



Financial Statements 

> Independent Auditors’ Report 
– Unmodified opinion 

> Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
> Basic financial statements 

– Full accrual Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities (similar to how a business 
would report) 

– Modified accrual fund statements (similar to budget basis) 
– Footnotes (standard disclosures) 

> Required supplementary information 
– Budget to actual schedules for General Fund and major special revenue funds 
– PERA contributions and share of net pension liability schedules 

> Supplementary information 
– Combining statements and schedules 
– Budget to actual schedules for remaining governmental funds 
– Schedule of Intergovernmental Revenues 

> See handout for highlights 
6 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/17/2017 Page 23 / 71



Federal Grant Awards Compliance Audit 

Federal Awards/Grant Programs Audit 
> Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other 

Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards and Minnesota Legal Compliance 
– Identifies material weakness findings similar to prior years (as mentioned previously) 

> Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program; Report on Internal Control 
Over Compliance: and Report on the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
Required by the Uniform Guidance 
– One finding identified 

> Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 
– Summarizes results 

– Identifies the major grant programs tested (Child Support and Medical Assistance) 

> Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
– Lists all federal grants and amounts expended for each 

– Total expenditures were $2,781,834 (programs noted above represented 50% of total) 

 

7 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/17/2017 Page 24 / 71



Questions? 

8 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/17/2017 Page 25 / 71



9 

 

Ryan Engelstad, CPA, Partner 
Ryan.Engelstad@bakertilly.com 

612 876 4613 
 

225 South 6th Street, Suite 2300 
Minneapolis, MN 55402 

 
 

 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/17/2017 Page 26 / 71

mailto:Ryan.Engelstad@bakertilly.com


2016

Details of Fund Balance

Nonspendable 
    includes fund balance amounts that cannot be spent either because they are not in spendable
    form or because legal or contractual requirements require them to be maintained intact. 199,833$ 

Restricted
    consists of fund balances with constraints placed on their use either by 1) external groups such
    as creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations or other governments or 2) law through
    constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 905,712

Assigned
    includes spendable fund balance amounts that are intended to be used for specific purposes
    that are not considered restricted or committed.  57,000 

Unassigned

    includes residual positive fund balance within the general fund which has not been classified

    within the other above mentioned categories. 5,763,579

     Total Fund Balance (page 3) 6,926,124$

     General Fund Expenditures (page 5) 13,171,014$

Assigned and Unassigned Fund Balance 5,820,579$

Assigned and Unassigned General Fund - Fund Balance as % of above Expenditures 44.19%
   

2016 2016 2015
Budget Actual Actual

Revenues and other financing sources 13,458,632$          13,802,256$          13,283,423$          
Expenditures and other financing uses (13,537,972)         (13,187,680)          (12,753,685)          

     NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (79,340)$               614,576$               529,738$              

2016 2015 2014

Cash and Investments
     Unrestricted 23,467,822$          20,701,755$          17,494,605$          
     Fiduciary Funds 1,748,585            1,456,359             1,433,822             

         Total Cash and Investments (page 22) 25,216,407$         22,158,114$          18,928,427$         

2016 FINANCIAL STATEMENT HIGHLIGHTS
LE SUEUR COUNTY

CASH AND INVESTMENTS 

GENERAL FUND 

General Fund Summarized Income Statement (page 46)

39.71%

40.72%
44.19%

0.00%

5.00%

10.00%

15.00%

20.00%

25.00%

30.00%

35.00%

40.00%

45.00%

50.00%

2014 2015 2016

Available or Assigned/Unassigned Fund Balance as a Percentage of Expenditures

LE SUEUR
COUNTY

OSA
Recommended
Minimum

GFOA
Recommended
Minimum

1

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/17/2017 Page 27 / 71



2016 2015 2014

     Total Fund Balances (Deficit) (page 3) 3,768,263$           3,050,445$            (1,957,741)$          

2016 2015 2014

     Total Fund Balances (page 3) 5,815,509$           6,074,170$            6,057,164$           

2016 2015 2014

     Total Fund Balances (page 3) 3,537,113$           2,278,354$            1,917,340$           

2016 2015 2014

     Total Fund Balances (Deficit) (page 3) (549,500)$             (546,202)$              (119,937)$             

2016 2015 2014

18,179,444$         18,625,453$          10,614,012$         

112,477,845        109,979,391         107,335,590        

    Percent of Debt Limit 16.16% 16.94% 9.89%

2016 2015 2014

Percentage of Debt Service to Non-Capital
    Expenditures - Governmental Funds 9.31% 6.66% 7.71%

LE SUEUR COUNTY
2016 FINANCIAL STATEMENT HIGHLIGHTS (cont.)

Outstanding General Obligation (G.O.) Debt,
less amount available in debt service fund

Total G.O. Debt Capacity (page 28)

GENERAL LONG-TERM DEBT

MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - ROAD & BRIDGE

MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH

MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - COUNTY DITCH

MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - HUMAN SERVICES

7.71%

6.66%

9.31%

0.00%

5.00%

10.00%

15.00%

20.00%

25.00%

2014 2015  2016

Debt Service to Non-Capital Expenditures

LE SUEUR
COUNTY

Bond Rating
Agency
Recommended
Maximum

2

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/17/2017 Page 28 / 71



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, October 17, 2017

Board Meeting

Item 5

10:15 a.m. Human Resources (5 min)

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/17/2017 Page 29 / 71



Equal Opportunity Employer

HUMAN RESOURCES
DETAILED AGENDA ITEMS

October 17, 2017

Recommendation to grant regular status to Nicole Farr, full time Administrative Assistant III in 
Public Health, effective October 4, 2017.  Nicole has completed the six-month probationary 
period.  

Recommendation to grant regular status to Alex Malmstedt, full time Corrections 
Officer/Dispatcher in the Sheriff’s Office, effective October 4, 2017.  Alex has completed the 
six-month probationary period.  

Recommendation to grant regular status to Jeff Neisen, full time Information Technology 
Director in Information Technology Department, effective October 4, 2017.  Jeff has 
completed the one-year probationary period.  

88 SOUTH PARK AVENUE  LE CENTER, MINNESOTA 56057
Telephone: 507-357-8517  Fax: 507-357-8607

Cindy Westerhouse – Human Resources Director

Human Resources

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/17/2017 Page 30 / 71



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, October 17, 2017

Board Meeting

Item 6

10:20 a.m. Pam Simonette, Auditor-Treasurer (10 min)

RE: Snowmobile Grant Agreement 2018

RE: David Woestehoff Farm Lease for Ney Property

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/17/2017 Page 31 / 71



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/17/2017 Page 32 / 71



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/17/2017 Page 33 / 71



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/17/2017 Page 34 / 71



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/17/2017 Page 35 / 71



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/17/2017 Page 36 / 71



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/17/2017 Page 37 / 71



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/17/2017 Page 38 / 71



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/17/2017 Page 39 / 71



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, October 17, 2017

Board Meeting

Item 7

10:30 a.m. H2Over Viewers (15 min)

RE: Introduction

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/17/2017 Page 40 / 71



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, October 17, 2017

Board Meeting

Item 8

10:45 a.m. Vicki Walechka, Victim Witness (5 min)

RE: Grant Agreement

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/17/2017 Page 41 / 71



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/17/2017 Page 42 / 71



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/17/2017 Page 43 / 71



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/17/2017 Page 44 / 71



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/17/2017 Page 45 / 71



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, October 17, 2017

Board Meeting

Item 9

10:50 a.m. Darrell Pettis, County Administrator 

RE: MCIT Delegate and Alternate

RE: MCIT JPA

RE: German Jefferson Petition

RE: West Jefferson

RE: Justice Center

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/17/2017 Page 46 / 71



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/17/2017 Page 47 / 71



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/17/2017 Page 48 / 71



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/17/2017 Page 49 / 71



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/17/2017 Page 50 / 71



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/17/2017 Page 51 / 71



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/17/2017 Page 52 / 71



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/17/2017 Page 53 / 71



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/17/2017 Page 54 / 71



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/17/2017 Page 55 / 71



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, October 17, 2017

Board Meeting

Item 10

11:00 a.m. PUBLIC HEARING Mike Schultz, SWCD, Kathy Brockway, 
Env. Services (45 minutes)

RE: Public Hearing-Buffer Ordinance

Staff Contact: Kathy Brockway - Environmental and P & Z Director

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/17/2017 Page 56 / 71



LE SUEUR COUNTY BUFFER ENFORCEMENT ORDINANCE 
PURSUANT TO STATUTES SECTION 103F.48

1.0 STATUTORY AUTHORIZATION AND POLICY 
1.1 Statutory authorization. This buffer ordinance is adopted pursuant to the authorization and 

policies contained in Minn. Stat. §103F.48, the Buffer Law as amended from time to time, 
Minn. Stat. §103B.101, subdivision 12a, authority to issue penalty orders and the County 
planning and zoning enabling legislation in Minn. Stat. chapter 394.

1.2 Purpose and intent. It is the purpose and intent of the County to:

(a) Provide for riparian vegetated buffers and water quality practices to achieve the following 
purposes:

(1) Protect state water resources from erosion and runoff pollution;

(2) Stabilize soils, shores and banks; and

(3) Protect or provide riparian corridors. 

       (b) Coordinate the implementation and enforcement of the water resources riparian protection 
requirements of Minn. Stat. §103F.48 with the shoreland management rules and ordinances 
adopted under the authority of Minn. Stat. §103F.201 to 103F.227 and the management of 
public drainage systems established under Minn. Stat. chapter 103E where applicable; and

(c) Provide efficient and effective direction to landowners and protection of surface water 
quality and related land resources. 

2.0 DEFINITIONS AND GENERAL PROVISIONS
2.1 Definitions.  Unless specifically defined below, words or phrases used in this ordinance shall be 

interpreted to give them the same meaning they have in common usage and to give this 
ordinance it’s most reasonable application. For the purpose of this ordinance, the words 
“must” and “shall” are mandatory and not permissive. All distances, unless otherwise specified, 
are measured horizontally.

2.1.1 “APO” means the administrative penalty order issued pursuant to Minn. Stat. §103F.48, 
subd. 7 and Minn. Stat. §103B.101, subd. 12a.

2.1.2 "Buffer" has the meaning provided in Minn. Stat. §103F.48, subd. 1(c). 

2.1.3 "Buffer protection map" has the meaning provided in Minn. Stat. §103F.48, subd. 1(d) 
and which are available on the Department of Natural Resources website.

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/17/2017 Page 57 / 71



2.1.4 “BWSR" means the Board of Water and Soil Resources.

2.1.5 “Cultivation farming” means farming practices that disturb root or soil structure or that 
impair the viability of perennial vegetation due to cutting or harvesting near the soil 
surface.  

2.1.6 “Drainage authority” has the meaning provided in Minn. Stat. §103E.005, subd. 9. 

2.1.7 “Landowner” means the holder of the fee title, the holder’s agents or assigns, any 
lessee, licensee, or operator of the real property and includes all land occupiers as 
defined by Minn. Stat. §103F.401, subd.  7 or any other party conducting farming 
activities on or exercising control over the real property.

2.1.8 “Parcel” means a unit of real property that has been given a tax identification number 
maintained by the County.

2.1.9 “Public drainage system" has the meaning given to “drainage system” in Minn. Stat. 
§103E.005, subd. 12. 

2.1.10 "Local water management authority" has the meaning provided in Minn. Stat. 
§103F.48, Subd. 1(g).

2.1.11 "Normal water level" means the level evidenced by the long-term presence of surface 
water as indicated directly by hydrophytic plants or hydric soils or indirectly determined 
via hydrological models or analysis.

2.1.12 “SWCD” means Soil and Water Conservation District.

2.1.13 “County” means Le Sueur County and its employees, designees or representatives.  

2.1.14 “Validation of Compliance” means a notice issued by SWCD that validates that a site(s) 
is compliant and that said validation is good as long as all practices identified/ 
documented continue to be in place and substantially in the condition identified at the 
time of issuance. Said notice shall be in recordable form. 

2.1.15 “Subsequent Initial Noncompliance” means a first incidence of noncompliance 
occurring on a parcel after an incidence of noncompliance has occurred on a different 
parcel.

2.2 Severability. If any section, clause, provision, or portion of this ordinance is adjudged 
unconstitutional or invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remainder of this ordinance 
shall not be affected thereby.

2.3 Data sharing/management.

2.3.1 The County may enter into arrangements with an SWCD, a watershed district if 
applicable, BWSR and other parties with respect to the creation and maintenance of, 
and access to, data concerning buffers and alternative practices under this ordinance.

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/17/2017 Page 58 / 71



2.3.2 The County will manage all such data in accordance with the Minnesota Data Practices 
Act and any other applicable laws.

2.4 Delegation of Enforcement. Nothing herein shall prevent the County from entering into an 
agreement with any other entity, authorized under statutes section 103F.48 to enforce buffer 
requirements, for the enforcement of buffer requirements within its jurisdiction according to 
this ordinance or other properly adopted enforcement rule. The County may delegate certain 
other functions under this ordinance to the SWCD under separate agreement.

2.5 Drainage System Acquisition and Compensation for Buffer. Nothing in this ordinance shall 
prevent the acquisition and compensation of grass buffers on public drainage systems pursuant 
to Minnesota Statutes chapter 103E.

3.0 JURISDICTION
3.1 Jurisdiction. The provisions of this ordinance apply to all waters, excluding public drainage 
systems for which the County is not the drainage authority or a member of a joint drainage  under 
Minn. Stat. chapter 103E, shown on the buffer protection map, where another enforcement 
authority has elected enforcement jurisdiction.

4.0 BUFFER REQUIREMENTS 
4.1 Buffer width. Except as provided in subsection 4.4 and 4.5, a landowner owning property 

adjacent to a water body identified on the buffer protection map must establish and maintain a 
buffer area as follows:

(a) For waters shown on the buffer protection map requiring a fifty (50) foot width buffer, the 
buffer width will be fifty (50) foot average and thirty (30) foot minimum width as provided in 
Minn. Stat. §103F.48, subd. 3.

(b) For waters shown on the buffer protection map requiring a sixteen and a half (16.5) foot 
minimum width buffer, the buffer width will be sixteen and a half (16.5) feet as provided in 
Minn. Stat. §103F.48, subd. 3 and as measured according to subsection 4.2 

4.2 Measurement. 

(a) The width of any  required buffer on land adjacent to a water requiring a fifty (50) foot 
average width and a thirty (30) foot minimum width buffer shall be measured from the top or 
crown of the bank. Where there is no defined bank, measurement must be from the edge of the 
normal water level as provided in Minn. Stat. §103F.48, subd. 3(c).

(b) The width of any required buffer on land adjacent to a water requiring a sixteen and a half 
(16.5) foot minimum width buffer shall be measured in the same manner as for measuring the 
vegetated grass strip under Minn. Stat. §103E.021, subd. 1 as provided in Minn. Stat. §103F.48, 
subd. 3(c).

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/17/2017 Page 59 / 71



4.3 Use of buffer area.  Except as provided in sections 4.4 and 4.5 a buffer as defined in this 
ordinance may not be put to any use, included but not limited to cultivation farming, which 
would remove or prevent the permanent growth of perennial vegetation.

4.4 Exemptions.  The requirement of section 4.1 does not apply to land that is exempted from the 
water resources riparian protection requirements under Minn. Stat. §103F.48, subd. 5.

4.5. Alternative practices.  As provided in Minn. Stat. §103F.48, subd.  3(b) an owner of land that is 
used for cultivation farming may demonstrate compliance with subsection 4.1 by establishing 
and maintaining an alternative riparian water quality practice(s), or combination of structural, 
vegetative, and management practice(s) which provide water quality protection comparable to 
the water quality protection provided by a required buffer as defined in sections 4.1 to 4.3. The 
adequacy of any alternative practice allowed under this section shall be based on:

(a) the Natural Resources Conservation Service (NRCS) Field Office Technical Guide (FOTG); 

(b) common alternative practices adopted and published by BWSR;

(c) practices based on local conditions approved by the SWCD that are consistent with the 
Natural Resources Conservation Service (NRCS) Field Office Technical Guide (FOTG);  or

(d) other practices adopted by BWSR. 

4.6 Nonconformities: Where the provisions of any statute, other ordinance or regulation imposes 
greater restrictions than this ordinance, the provisions of such statute, other ordinance, or 
regulation shall control.  Parcels that are considered noncomforming for other land uses shall 
not be nonconforming with respect to these provisions and with respect to compliance with 
Minn. Stat.§ 103F.48.

5.0 COMPLIANCE DETERMINATIONS
5.1 Compliance determinations.  Compliance with the buffer requirements set forth in section 4 will 

be determined by the SWCD on a parcel by parcel basis. The compliance status of each bank, or 
edge of a watercourse on an individual parcel will be determined independently. 

5.2 Investigation and notification of noncompliance.  The SWCD is responsible for identifying and 
notifying the County of noncompliance. If the County becomes aware of a potential 
noncompliance with the buffer requirements or receives a third party complaint from a private 
individual or entity, or from another public agency, it will consult with the SWCD to determine 
the appropriate course of action to document compliance status.  This may include 
communication with the landowner, inspection or other appropriate steps necessary to verify 
the compliance status of the parcel.  On the basis of the evidence gathered in this process, the 
SWCD may issue a Notification of Noncompliance to the County.  If the SWCD does not issue 
such a Notification, the County will not pursue a compliance or enforcement action under 
Minnesota Statutes §103F.48 and subsection 6.2.  If the SWCD does issue such a Notification, 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/17/2017 Page 60 / 71



the SWCD must include, for consideration by the County, a list of corrective actions needed to 
come into compliance with the requirements of Minn. Stat. §103F.48; a recommended timeline 
for completing the corrective actions; and a standard by which the SWCD will judge compliance 
with the requirements of Minn. Stat. §103F.48 after the corrective actions are taken.

At any time during process set forth in 5.2 and 5.3, the landowner may provide documentation 
of compliance to the SWCD. 

5.2.1  Compliance determination. The SWCD will evaluate the available documentation, and/or 
evaluate and/or inspect the buffer and/or alternative practices to determine if the parcel is in 
compliance. Upon completion of the evaluation and/or inspection the SWCD shall issue a 
written compliance determination to the landowner, the County and BWSR. The SWCD may also 
issue a Validation of Compliance if applicable and requested by the landowner. 

5.3 Corrective Action Notice. On receipt of an SWCD Notification of Noncompliance, the County 
or assigned Agent will issue the landowner a Corrective Action Notice that will:

(a) include a list of corrective actions needed to come into compliance with the requirements of 
Minn. Stat. §103F.48;

(b) provide a timeline for completing the corrective actions; 

(c) provide the standard by which compliance will be evaluated after the corrective actions are 
taken; and 

(d) include a statement that failure to complete corrective actions and achieve compliance 
within the timeline provided may result in civil or administrative enforcement actions and the 
assessment of administrative penalties. 

The County may send the landowner a combined Corrective Action Notice and APO as provided 
in section 6.2 so long as the combined Notice/APO includes all the required elements of both. 

The County shall transmit the corrective action notice by either personal service to the 
landowner or by depositing the same in the U.S. Mail. If service is made by U.S. mail, the 
document is deemed received three business days after the notice was placed in the U.S. mail. 
Failure of actual receipt of a corrective action notice that has either been personally served or 
served by depositing the same in the U.S. Mail shall not be deemed a defense in an enforcement 
proceeding under section 6.0. The County shall also send a copy of the Notice to the SWCD and 
BWSR.

Counties may modify the corrective actions and timeline for compliance, in accordance with 
section 5.2, to extend the compliance timeline for a modification that imposes a substantial new 
action or significantly accelerates the completion date for an action. 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/17/2017 Page 61 / 71



5.3.1 At any time after receipt of a corrective action notice, the landowner may provide 
documentation of compliance to the County. In addition, the landowner may supply 
information to the County or the SWCD in support of a request to modify a corrective 
action or the timeline for compliance.  On the basis of any such submittal or at its own 
discretion, the County, after consulting the SWCD, may make a written modification to 
the Corrective Action Notice or timeline for compliance. The County, upon review and 
notification by the SWCD, should also make a written determination documenting 
whether the noncompliance has been fully corrected. Any such modification of a 
compliance determination will be served on the landowner in the manner provided for 
in section 5.3. The County shall provide the SWCD and BWSR a written copy of any 
modification made pursuant to this provision. 

5.3.2 The SWCD may, after an evaluation of the evidence documenting compliance submitted 
by the landowner, issue a written Validation of Compliance if requested by the 
landowner. Upon receipt by the County of a written compliance determination issued by 
the SWCD, the Corrective Action Notice will be deemed withdrawn for the purpose of 
section 6.0, and the subject property will not be subject to enforcement under that 
section.

6.0 ENFORCEMENT

6.1 The County may issue an APO as provided for in Minn. Stat. §§103F.48, subd. 7(b) and (c) and 
103B.101, subdivision 12a to a landowner who has failed to take the corrective action as set forth in 
the corrective action notice. For the APO to be effective it must be served on the landowner 
together with a copy of the corrective action notice or alternatively the County may serve the 
landowner with a combined Corrective Action Notice and APO so long as the combined Notice/APO 
includes all the elements of both. Service is effective either by personal service or by depositing the 
documents set forth herein in the U.S. Mail. Any penalty assessed in the APO shall continue to 
accrue until the violation is corrected as provided in the Corrective Action Notice and APO.

6.2 Administrative Penalty Order (APO).

(a) Initial violation.  The penalty for a landowner on a single parcel that has not previously been 
issued a corrective action notice by the County shall be:

i. $0 for 11 months after issuance of the Corrective Action Notice or during the schedule 
issued for taking correction actions, whichever is greater; 

ii. Up to $200  per parcel per month for the first six (6) months (180 days) following the 
time period in i; and

iii. Up to $500 per parcel per month after six (6) months (180 days) following the time 
period in ii.

(b) Repeat violation.  The penalty for a landowner on a single parcel that has previously been 
issued a corrective action notice by the County shall be:

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/17/2017 Page 62 / 71



i. Up to $200 per parcel per day for 180 days after issuance of the subsequent Corrective 
Action Notice; and

ii. Up to $500 per parcel per day for after 180 days following the time period in i.

(c) Ongoing penalty assessment. Any penalty assessed under this section shall continue until the 
corrective action notice has been satisfied.

6.2.1 Penalty Determination. For administrative penalties imposed by the County, the County 
shall determine the severity of the noncompliance, intentional nature of noncompliance 
and frequency of noncompliance in determining the amount of violation. The amount of 
an administrative penalty will be based on considerations including the extent, gravity 
and willfulness of the noncompliance; its economic benefit to the responsible party; the 
extent of the responsible party’s diligence in addressing it; any noncompliance history; 
the public costs incurred to address the noncompliance; and other factors as justice may 
require. Upon appropriate findings, the County shall use the following table to 
determining a penalty amount:

Severity of ViolationNature of Violation
Minor Moderate Substantial

Initial noncompliance 
(initial term)

$50 $100 $150

Initial noncompliance 
(subsequent term)

$200 $300 $400

Subsequent initial 
noncompliance (new parcel, 
initial term)

$100 $150 $200

Subsequent initial 
noncompliance (new parcel, 
subsequent term)

$300 $400 $500

Repeat noncompliance 
(same parcel, initial term)

$100 $150 $200

Repeat noncompliance 
(same parcel, subsequent 
term)

$300 $400 $500

6.2.2 APO.   To be valid the APO shall include, at a minimum:

i. The facts constituting the violation of the riparian protection and water quality practices 
requirements set forth in this section 4.0 of this ordinance or  Minn. Stat. §103F.48 ;

ii. The specific statute  and/or ordinance section(s) that has/have been violated;
iii. A written description of  prior efforts to work with the  landowner to resolve the 

violation;
iv. The amount of the penalty to be imposed; 
v. The facts supporting the amount of the penalty;

vi. The date the penalty will begin to accrue;
vii. The date that payment of the penalty is due; 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/17/2017 Page 63 / 71



viii. The date by which all or part of the penalty may be forgiven if the landowner has/have 
complied with the Corrective Action Notice; and

ix. A statement of the landowner’s right to appeal the APO.

6.2.3 All or part of the penalty may be forgiven based on the correction of the noncompliance by 
the date specified in the APO by the landowner as provided in Minn. Stat. §103F.48, subd. 
7(d).

6.2.4 A copy of the APO must be sent to the SWCD and BWSR.

6.2.5 An APO issued under this section may be appealed to the BWSR within 30 days of receipt 
by the landowner in accordance with the requirements set for the in  Minn. Stat. 
§103F.48, subd. 9. Any APO that is not appealed within the 30 day period shall be deemed 
final. 

6.3 Administrative Penalty Order Procedures

6.3.1 Statute of limitations.  According to Minn. Stat. §541.07, the County has two years in 
which to commence an APO action after the date the violation is discovered. The goal is to 
complete the action as soon as reasonably practical, recognizing that situations for which 
data must be gathered, field investigations must be completed and/or modeling must be 
performed will require adequate time to complete the work and communicate with the 
landowner involved.

6.3.2 Compliance verification.   Once a landowner has provided notice and submitted 
written evidence of correction of the violation set forth in the notice of compliance, 
compliance must be verified. The County will refer the landowner’s evidence and notice to 
the SWCD to:

i. Review and evaluate all information related to the corrective action notice or APO 
to determine if the violation has been corrected;

ii. Verify compliance by site visit, re-inspection, examination of documentation, or 
other means as may be reasonable under the facts of the case; and

iii. Document compliance verification.

The SWCD may consult with the County when conducting a compliance verification.

6.3.3 Right to appeal.  Within 30 days after receipt of the APO, a landowner may appeal the 
terms and conditions of an APO issued by a County to BWSR as provided in Minn. Stat. 
§103F.48, subd. 9. The appeal must be in writing and must include a copy of the APO that is 
being appealed, the basis for the appeal and any supporting evidence. The appeal may be 
submitted personally, by U.S. mail, or electronically, to the Executive Director of BWSR. 

6.3.4 Penalty due.  Unless the landowner appeals the APO as provided in section 6.3.3 the 
penalty specified in the APO becomes immediately due and payable to the County as set 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/17/2017 Page 64 / 71



forth in the APO. If, however, the landowner submits written documentation that the 
violations has been corrected prior to the time the penalty becomes due and payable the 
County shall verify compliance and adjust the penalty to an amount the landowner would 
have owed had the penalty been paid on the date the landowner submitted written 
documentation of compliance. Written documentation of compliance may include a written 
validation of compliance issued by the SWCD. 

However, if the County determines the violation was not fully corrected, the County shall 
notify the landowner by issuing a written letter of determination and depositing it in the 
U.S. Mail. Any determination sent by U.S. Mail shall be deemed received three business days 
after the letter of determination has been deposited in the U.S. Mail. The landowner shall 
have an additional 20 days after receipt of the letter of determination to pay the penalty or 
the time period specified in the APO as issued, whichever is later. The penalty will continue 
to accrue until the violation is corrected as provided in the Corrective Action Notice and 
APO.

6.3.5 Referral for collection of penalty.  All penalties and interest assessed under an APO 
must be paid by the landowner. All payments shall be made payable to the County. Any 
penalty or interest not received may be collected by the County using any lawful means 
including, if lawful, recovery by additional property tax or by recording a lien against the 
property. 

6.3.6 Reporting and documentation. The SWCD shall maintain the following records for any 
potential violation of the riparian protection and water quality practices requirements. Said 
records shall include but are not limited to the following:

i. The cause of the violation;
ii. The magnitude and duration of the violation;

iii. Documentation showing whether the violation presents an actual or imminent 
risk to public health and safety;

iv. Documentation showing whether the violation has the potential to harm to the 
natural resources of the state;

v. A record of past violations; 
vi. Efforts by the SWCD, County, Watershed District or BWSR to assist the 

responsible party or parties  to become compliant, including written and oral 
communications with the responsible party or parties ; and

vii. Past and present corrective action efforts by the responsible party or parties.

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/17/2017 Page 65 / 71



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/17/2017 Page 66 / 71



October 12, 2017 

 

TO: LeSueur County SWCD,  

attn: Mike 

 

FR: Jeremy Geske, President – LeSueur County Farm Bureau 

 

RE: Proposed Buffer Ordinance 

 

On behalf of the LeSueur County Farm Bureau, please accept the following comments on the proposed 

buffer ordinance.  

 

First, we (LeSueur County Farm Bureau) would like to commend LeSueur County for accepting 

responsibility for administering the state buffer law. We agree that these decisions are best done at the 

local level and not left to state agencies. We are confident that the LeSueur County SWCD can maintain 

a good working relationship with farmers and see that adequate buffers (or alternative practices) are in 

place on the landscape.  

 

In reading the draft ordinance language, we do have a couple concerns.  

1) When a landowner receives a notice of non-compliance, the ordinance states that the 

landowner has 6 months to come into compliance. Depending on when that notice is received, 6 

months may not be adequate. We suggest that time frame be increased to 12 months or at least 

one full growing/planting season.  

2) The definition of a “landowner” includes “lessee”. We are concerned that if a landowner refuses 

to comply (and refuses to give consent to the lessee to comply) that it is unfair to hold the 

lessee responsible. We would hope that the landowner would work closely with the lessee to 

ensure adequate buffers (or alternative practices) are in place, but a lessee cannot force the 

landowner to comply. We suggest the language be changed to reflect that the landowner is 

responsible, not the lessee.  

3) Later in the ordinance there is a table with different penalties for different levels of severity of 

noncompliance. While we appreciate some flexibility being given to the SWCD to work with 

landowners, we aren’t sure the table in the ordinance adequately defines the different 

categories. We suggest additional language be included to better explain the various levels of 

severity.  

4) Throughout the ordinance, it often refers to the county employee, but does not define who that 

person(s) is or what department they work in. We would like more clarification on who that 

person or department is/will be.  

 

Thank you for considering these comments on behalf of the LeSueur County Farm Bureau. If you would 

like to visit with me further on these issues, I can be reached at 612-756-1200 or 

jeremy.geske@gmail.com. I plan to attend the public hearing.  

 

My family and I have a sheep farm in Lanesburgh Township.  

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/17/2017 Page 67 / 71

mailto:jeremy.geske@gmail.com


Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, October 17, 2017

Board Meeting

Item 11

Commissioner Committee Reports

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/17/2017 Page 68 / 71



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, October 17, 2017

Board Meeting

Item 12

Future Meetings List

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/17/2017 Page 69 / 71



Future Meetings
October - December 2017 

October

Tuesday, Oct. 17, 2017 Board Meeting, 9:00 a.m.
*Buffer Ordinance Public Hearing, 11:00 a.m.

Wednesday, Oct. 18, 2017 Justice Center Open House, 6:30 – 9:00 p.m.  at 4H Bldg.

Thursday, Oct. 19, 2017 Board of Adjustment Meeting, 3:00 p.m. at Environmental Services

Tuesday, Oct. 24, 2017 Board Meeting, 9:00 a.m.

November

Wednesday, Nov. 1, 2017 District 7 AMC Meeting, 8:00 a.m. at the Nicollet Conservation Club

Tuesday, Nov. 7, 2017 Board Meeting, 9:00 a.m.
*CHB Meeting, 1:00 p.m. in Waterville

Thursday, Nov. 9, 2017 P&Z Meeting, 7:00 p.m. at Environmental Services

Friday, Nov. 10, 2017 Offices Closed – Veteran’s Day

Thursday, Nov. 16, 2017 Board of Adjustment Meeting, 3:00 p.m. at Environmental Services

Tuesday, Nov.  21, 2017 Board Meeting, 9:00 a.m.

November 23-24, 2017 Offices Closed – Thanksgiving Holiday

Tuesday, Nov. 28, 2017 Board Meeting, 9:00 a.m.

Thursday, Nov. 30, 2017 Final Redetermination Hearings, 10:00 a.m.
County Ditches 19, 28, 42, 52 and 69

December

Tuesday, Dec. 5, 2017 No Board Meeting – AMC Conference, Dec. 4-5 in St. Cloud, MN

Thursday, Dec. 7, 2017 Le Sueur – Scott Joint Ditch 4 Public Hearing, 9:00 a.m.
County Ditch 41 and 61 Public Hearings, 10:00 a.m.

Tuesday, Dec. 12, 2017 Board Meeting, 9:00 a.m.

Thursday, Dec, 14, 2017 P&Z Meeting, 7:00 p.m. at Environmental Services

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/17/2017 Page 70 / 71



Tuesday, Dec. 19, 2017 Board Meeting, 4:30 p.m.
*2018 Budget and Levy Public Hearing 6:00 p.m.

Thursday, Dec. 21, 2017 Board of Adjustment Meeting, 3:00 p.m. at Environmental Services

Monday, Dec. 25, 2017 Offices Closed – Christmas Day

Tuesday, Dec. 26, 2017 No Board Meeting

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 10/17/2017 Page 71 / 71


